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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMRBERS OF DA TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the IndAS Financlal Statements

We have audited the accompanying IndAS financial statements of DA TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31= March, 2017, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Change in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “IndAS financial statements).

Management’s Responsibility for the IndAS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these IndAS financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs, profit, cash flows and change in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standard (IndAS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the IndAS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion or this IndAS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provision of the act and
the rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the IndAS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the IndAS
financial statements are free from material misstatement. -
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the IndAS financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the IndAS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the IndAS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the IndAS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the IndAS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid IndAS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in cenformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including the IndAS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its profit, its
cash flows and the change in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2016 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at 1st April 2015 included in these standalone IndAS financial
statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the us, whose report for the year ended
31st March 2016 and 31st March 2015 dated 14t May 2016 and 18* May 2015 respectively expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting
principles adopted by the Company on transition to the IndAS, which have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Repulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 we give in the “Annexure A"
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable,
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2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b)  In our opinion, proper books of acccunt as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books

(c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of
change in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid IndAS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rule issued thereunder.

{e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2017
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,
2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

() ~ With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B".

(g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended by Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2017, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

v.  The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its IndAS financial statements as to
holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8 November,
2016 to 30 December, 2016 and these are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the Company. Refer Note 37 to the IndAS financial statements.
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For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. {IGE?IIN}NSUHEZB

\
tlwani
er)

Place: Mumbai Membership No. 76550
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ANNEXURE-A

DA Toll Road Private Limited

Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report for the period ended March 2017
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the Heading of "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Report of even date)

(i) Fixed Assets

a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including guantitative
details and situtation of its fixed assets.

b) As explanation and information given to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by
the management in phased manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the
size & nature of the company. No material discrepancies were noted on such verification.

c) Title deeds of immovable assets held in the name the company.

(ii) Inventories

There were no inventory lying as on 31.03.2017, accordingly, the provisions of clause [ii) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

(iif) Loansgiven
The Company has not granted any Secured or unsecured loan to companies, firms, Limited

Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Hence reporting under clause 3 (iii) (a), (b) and (c) does not arise.

(iv) Compliance of Sec, 185 & 186

The Company has not entered into any transaction in respect of loans, investments, guarantee and
security which attracts compliance to provisions of section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,
therefore, paragraph 3 (iv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(v)  Public Deposit

During the year, the company has nat accepted any depasits from the public, therefore, paragraph
3 (v) of the order is not applicable.

T R Chadha & Co., a partriership firm converted into T B Chadhn & Co LLP
(A limited liability partnerahip with LLP Identification No. AAP- 3926) with effect from 28th December, 2015)

Corporate Offica ; B-30, Connaught Place, Kuthiala Bullding, New Dalhl = 110001
Phone : 43259900, Fax : 43259930, Emall ;
Regd. Office : Sulte No. 114, 2 Floor, Gobind Mansion, H-Block, Connaught Clreus, New Delhi - 110004
Phone : 011 41513059 / 41613169

Branches at: %" AHMEDABAD ** BENGALURU #* CHENNAI %* GURGAON “* HYDERABAD % PUNE



41017944
Stamp


T R Chadha & Co LLP Pt

Chartered Accountants

502, Marathon Icon, ) &
Off. Ganpatrao Kadam Marg
' S

Opp. Peninsula Corporate Park

Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013

Tel.: 022-49669000
Fax.: 022-49665023
Email:mumbai@trchadha.com

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xit)

|

% 2 ==

Cost Records

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the
company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of section 148 the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
specified accounts and records have heen made and maintained.

Statutory Dues

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, the Company has generally been regular in depositing its undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State insurance, income-tax, Sales-Tax,

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts in respect of
income tax, service tax etc. that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

Company has not defualted in repayment of loans or borrowing to financial institutions, banks,
government or dues to debenture holcers,

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instrument) any term loans during the period under audit therefore, paragraph 3 (ix) of the
order is not applicable to the company,

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management,
we report that no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the year.

As the company is a private limited company, therefore, paragraph 3 (xi) of the order with regards
to payment of managerial remuneration is not applicable to the company.

As explained, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is not
applicable to the company,

TR Chedha & Co., & partnership firm converted into T R Chadha & Co LLP
(A& limirted liability partnership with LLP Identification No, AAF-3926) with effect from 2Bth Decetnber, 20 15)

Corporate Office : B-30, Connaught Place, Kuthiala Bullding, New Defhl = 140001
Fhone ; 43259900, Fax: 432 59930, E-mall : dethi@trchadha.com
Regd. Office : Sulte No, 1A, 2 Floor, Gobind Mansion, H-Block, Connaught Circus, New Delhi - 110001
Phone : 011 415413059 / 41513169

Branches at:  * AHMEDABAD * BENGALURU CHENNAI #* GURGAON “* HYDERABAD %* PUNE



41017944
Stamp


T R Chadha & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants : -
502, Marathon Icon, %
Off. Ganpatrao Kadam Marg

Opp. Peninsula Corporate Park f

Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 2
Tel.: 022-49669000

Fax.: 022-49669023

Email:mumbai@trchadha.com

_—— = e — — — —
== = == = —_—

(x111) As the the company is a private limited company it is not required to constitute audit committee
hence section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. The Company has
camplied with the provision of section 188 and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statement as required by the applicable accouting standards.

(xiv) Company has not made preferential allotment or privete placement of shares or fully or partially
convertible debenture during the year under review, Therefore, clause (xiv) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(xv)  As per the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not entered
into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with him. Therefore paragraph
3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xvi) As per the information and explanations given by the management, company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore paragraph 3
(xvi) of the order is not applicable to the company.

For TR Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 006711N/N500028

J

-

P Prafiflivan:
Date: I/ (Partner)
Place: Mumbai Membership No. 76550
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ANNEXURE-B

THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT COF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DA
TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DA Toll Road Private Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31 March, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the IndAS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on, "the internal contrel over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of jts business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Contrals
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
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assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,
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In our opinion, the Company has, in all materiz] respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March, 2017, based on, "the internal control gver financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India”,

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 006711N/N500028

» b

_ _ Pramdpd-Tilwani
Date; ; (Partner)
Place: Mumbai Membership No. 76650
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DA Toll Road Private Limited
Balance Sheet

* Millions
Sitisinan As at As at As at
Note 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 1st April, 2015
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Intangible azzets 4 17 538.41 - =
(b} Intangible assets under development 4 1,586.18 12,777.87 871841
{z] Financial Asgets
- DMher Financial Assets al - 142 68 31141
(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 27 230 .33 13532 B4 88
(@) Other non - current assels 5] 22245 1,204 41 2,278.40
Current assets
(&) Financial Asscts
(i) Cash and cash equivalents Sa 440 16 15.24 31883
{v} Other linancial assat 5b 1,167.83 54941 g2
(0} Current Tax Assets {Mat) 2475 1421 | :
(cy Other current assets 7 120.55 107.02 284.04
Total Assets 21,340.67 15,036.14 10,006.70
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a) Equily share capital &8 80.18 00.18 890.18
(b} Subordinated debt (in nature of Equity) 84 444910 2.876.55 260285
[y Mher equity 9 3,789.39 366364 2.561.83
LIABILITIES
Non-current llabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 10a 11,370.15 5,080.25 242 60
(il) Dther financial liabilites 12b 135.24 651.45 I57.74
(b} Provisions 13b 12.93 7.86 2.66
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
{i} Borrowings 10b 154.40 114 .50 26.80
{iiy Trade payables 1 757 51 78.11 14 87
{iii} Other financial liabilities 12a 578.10 2,4B60.28 4,046 68
(b} Other current liabilities 14 2.57 12,90 9.24
{c) Provisions 13a 0.39 0.34 Q.16
{d} Current Tax Liabilites (Net) - - 40.11
Total Equity and Liabilities 21,340.67 15,036.14 _10,006.70

The accormpanying sumimary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infarmtaion [notes) are an integral part of

the Financial Statermeants.

This is the Balance Sheet referred ta in aur report of evan date,

For TR Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Fgn No. 00§711N/N500028

y

Pramoggliﬁni
Partner
Mermbership No. | 766850

Place : Mumbai
Cate : April 14, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board

)
Kaushik Pal
Director
DIN:05237230

Place : Mumbai

-

- HET
Madan Biyani
Director

DIN:07130371

Date : April 14, 2017

-

Srilatha Gopal
1:um pany Secretary

P

T
A

Ty


41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp


DA Toll Road Pvt Ltd
Statement of Profit and Loss

¥ Millions
. Year ended Year ended
Paricutars " March31,2017  March 31, 2016
Revenue from Operations 15 8,337.26 7,558.67
Other Income 1] 80.71 G082
Total Income 8,427 87 7 610.49
Expenses |
Toll Cperation and Maintainence expenses 17 83824 287.89
Construction cost B.494 67 579388
Employee benefitz expense 18 7143 72.34
Finance cosls ) 1 494 11 4563
Amorlization axpense 4 321 B8 -
Other expenses 20 G O __1arry
Total expanses 8,381.27 B310.51
Profit / {loss) before tax 46.70 1,308.98
Tax expense
Cuorrent tax 13.80 244,93
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (94209 . (358.02)
Profit/{Loss) for the year 127.30 1,103.07
Other Comprehensive Income
(1} Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss [
Remeasurements of net defined (2.37) {3.78)
benefit plans : Gains / {Loss)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasuraments of net defined benefit plans {0.82) (1.31)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year {1.55) (2.47)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 125.75 1,100.60
Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each
Basic & Diluted 3& 14,12 122.32

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infarmtaion {notes)

are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For TR Chadha & Co LLP .
Chartered Accountants
Firpg Rean, NDBQ{}EH TN/NSD00Z8

Kauﬁhik Pal
Director
DIN:05237230

Pr
Fartfier
Membership No. : 76650

ilwani

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 14, 2017

Place . Mumbai
Date . April 14, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board

el =50
Madan Biyani
Dirac
DIM:07430371

Srilatha Gopal
Company Secreta

A .
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DA Toll Road Pyt Ltd
Cash flow Statemont
% Millions
Year cndod " Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018

Particulars

A CASH FLOV FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Frofit before exceptional items and tax 46.70 1.305.21
Adiuslmenis for,
Amartization expense 3491.88 =
Interast income (BO.67) (2.B0)
Interos| expense 350.97 48,53
Mark-le-market (galnyless on dedvative financlal instruments 143,14 | {10.45)
342,02 1,340.79

Cash Generated fram Operations before |
warking capital changes

Adiuatments for:
lncrease)/decraasa in financial assets except far investmenls [391.07) 380.03)
(Increase)fdecrease In other sument assets {13.53) 177 02
Increase/(decrease) in rade payablas 678 40 6324
Incesse/{decreasa) in other financial lipbilitles 130.32 16.91
Incrsased(decrease) in provisions 278 4.38
Increasef{decraase) in other current liabillles (10.42) 3.75
397 .44 {1 14.72)
Cash generated from operations 1.239.46 1,226.08
Taxes (paid) net of relunds (24 14) (289.25)
Mat cash generated from eporating activitios - 4] 1.215.31 526.82
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchzse/sale pioceeds of intangible assels {including intangibie
assest under devaiopment) {7,922 .45) {6,093.02)
Interest received 5.98 2.80
Mot cash (used in) | generatod from investing activities - B8] (7.916.47) 16.090,41)
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANGCING ACTIVITIES : |
Proceeds from Sub-debt 1.572.55 27370
Procesede from inter-corporate deposits (shart term borrowings) I an 87.70
Proceeds from long term barrowings B, 380 34 5|048 57
Interast paid (BBE.71) (551,35)
Net cash usad in financing activities - [C] 7.126.08 4,859.02
Net increasel{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C] 474,02 304 58)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the boginning of the year 15.24 late.83
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 44016 16,24
Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Balancis with banks - in Curent accounts 147.64 10.56
Deposits with maturity of lass than three months 280.00 -
Cash an hand 12.52 4 68
Total Cash and cash equivalonts 44016 16,24

Mole: The above Statement ol Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indivect Method' as set oul in Ind AS 7.
"Slatement of Cash Flows',

The accompanying summary of significant aceounting policies and olher explanatory infurmtaion (notes) are an
Integral part of tha Financial Slalements,

This Is the: Cash Flow Statement refarred to in our report of aven dato.

For TR Chadha & Cou LLP For and on behalf of Fiql Buoard
Charterad Accountants.

Firm Regp. No. 006F11N/NS00028

=
Kaushik Pal Madarf Biyani
Diractor Diredtor
DIN:05237230 DINOF 130371
Srilatha Gopal
Company Secratary
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbea o

Date : April 14, 2017 Date : April 14, 2017

T
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Ca Toll Road Pvt Ltd
Statement of Changes in Equity

A, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL T Millions
Balance at the | Changes in equity | Balance at the end
beginning of the share capital of the year
yaar during the year
For the year ended 315t March, 2016 8018 - 8018
For the year ended 3151 March, 2017 20.18 - 20,18
B. OTHEREQuity [ Note ide 47 2 Mlllinn%
Equity Component Reserves and Surplus
of compoud
financial Securities Retalned Earnings Total
instrumeants Pramium (Mote |9¢)
{Note 8b) Atcount
Jues {Note 9d) |
Balanco at April 01, 2015 = 810.72 1.761.11 2.561.83

Frrafit for the year 1,103.[“‘ 1,103.07

Other comprehansive incomediloss) far the year {2.47) [2.47)
Tatal comprehensive income far the year - W 1.100.80 1,100.60

|
Transaction with owners in thair capacity as owners :
Corporate Guarantee (in nature of cguity) 1.20 1.20

Dividand Paid -

1.20 - - 1.20
Balance at 31st March 2016 1.20 810.72 2,B51.72 3,663.64
Balance at April 01, 2016 1.20 810.72 2.851.72 3,663.64

Frafit for the year 127.30 127.30

Other comgrehansive Incomed(loss} for the year {1.55) (1.55)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 125.75 125.75
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners :

Dividend Paid -
Balance at 31st March 2017 1.20 810.72 2,977.47 3,788.38 |
This is statement of change of equity referred to in our report of evan date, [

For TR Chadha & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 006711 N/NS00028
A~ e !
—_— - =
Pramod Kaushik Pal ~ == "= " midan Biyani
Fartner Diractor tor
Memberghip No. . 76650 DIN:052372 DINE7130571
¥
Srilatha Gopal
Lompany Secrelary
Place : Mumbai Flace : Mumbai

Date * April 14, 2017

Date : April 14, 2017
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DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Carporate information

DA Tell Road Private Limited [ the * Company”} has been awarded (o carry on the business of design,
engineer, procure, construct fabricale build, improve, strengthen, operate, maintain and provide
infrastructural facilities of all lypes including roads, bridges, culvarts, over bridges, underpasses, flyovers,
toll plaza, traffic management syslems and equipment, buildings and other infrastructures and colieat tall,
fees, or charges, carry out surveys, investigations, polls and regulate traffic in coennection with the project
to be taken up by the Company on Design, Build, Operate and Transfar (DBFOT) basis under the
Concession Agreemant dated July 28, 2010 with Matinral Highways Authority of India. The Conceesion
Agreerment is for a period of 26 yesrs from appeinted date for Design, Engineering, Construction,
Operation and Maintenance for Six laning of Delni ta Agra seclion of National Highway — 2 (km 20.50 to km
200.00) in the state of Haryana/Uttar Pradesh ar otherwize.

Note 2: Basis of preparation |

These Financial Statements of the Company comprises of Balanca Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss,
Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity, a summary of significant accounting paolicies,
notee and other axplanatory information,

These Financial Statements comply in &l material aspects with Indian Accounling StandardJ (Ind AS)
notifiad under Section 133 of the Campanies Act, 2013 ithe Act) [Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant pravisions of the Act. These Financial Statements have besn
Prepared In accordance with the requirements of the infarmation and disclosuras mandated by Schedule
Il of the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and regulations. These Finencial
Statements are the first Financial Staterments of the Company under Ind AS The Financial Statements up
to year ended 31 March 2018 were prepared in accordance wilth the accounting standards notifisd under
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2008 {as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These Financial Statements have bean prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and
ligbilities whish have been measured ar fair value. For the purpose of preparation of these Financial
Statemenis, the transition date to Ind AS & considered as April 1, 2015,

These Financial Statements are presented in ¥ Millions, except where olherwise indicated.
Accounting standards issued but not yet effactive
Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with clstomers’ have been published by Ministry of Corporate Affairs

(MCA) bul are not yet effective. Ind AS 115 establishes principles for reporting useful information to users
of the financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and tash flows

Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

The Cormpany presents assels and lizbilities in the balance sheet based on current’ non-current
elassification

An azset is treated as current when if je-

* Expected to be realised or intended to ke sold or consumed in normal uperating cycle

' Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting periad. or

= Cash or cash eguivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or usaed to selle a liakility for at least
twelve months after the reporting pericd

All ather assels ara classified as nan-current.
A liability is current when: |
*  Itis expactad to be setiled in nonnal aperating cycle |
*  Itis due to ba settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
= There is nu unconditional ngnt to defe- the settlement of the liability for at least twalve manths after
the reporting period
All other lighilities are classified as non-current

Deferred tax azsets and liabilities are classified as nan-current assats and liabilities

T
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DA Toll Road Private Limited
Motes to Financial Statements

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of asssts for processing and their m*li?aliun in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identifisd twelve monihs as its oparating cycle,

Foraign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

ftems included in the Financial Staternents of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in whizh the entity operates ('the functional currency’). The Financial
Slalements are presented in Indian Rupees (¥), which is the Company's functional and presentation
CLITEncy.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transaclions are translaled into the funclional surrency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions, Foreign exchange gaine and losses resulfing from (he
selllement of such ransactions and from the translation al year-end exchanga rates of monstary assets
and liabilities denaminated in Tureign currencies are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss wilh an
excaption of the Tollowing:-

|
Under Ind AS 21 exchange diffierences arising on lhe translation/settiement of non-monatary item should
be trealed as income or loss in Statement of Profit and Loss. However, Ind AS 101 gives an exemption for
existing long term foreign currency nor-monetary itams wherein the Company can confinue [the policy
adopted for treatment of exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items
pertaining lo the acquisition uf & depreciable assst for flems recognized on or befora March 31, 2?31 5

For any new long term forsign Gurrency non-monetary item recognized from or after first Ind AS financial
reporting period, deferralfamaortization of exchange differsnce will not be allowed. rather the Cempany will
apply Ind AS 21 for recognifion of gains and lozsps

Fair value measurement

Fair value is tha price that would be receivad to sell an asset or paid to transfer a ligbility in an orderly
transaction between market parlicipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is bazad
on the presumption that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, In the most advanlagecus market for the azsef or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be acceszible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market pariicipants would
use when pricing the asset or lia bility, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-finencial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
penerate econcmic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Cormpany uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relavant cbservable inputs and minimizing
the use of unohservable inputs

All assets and fiakilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
calegorized within the fair valye higrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant fo the fair value measurement s= a whale:

Level 1 - Cucled (unadjusted) markat prices in active markets for dentical assats or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the far valpe
measuremant is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 -Valuation technigues for which (he lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement 1z unabservable

For assetz and liabiliiez that are recognised in the Financial Slatements on & recurring Pasjs. the
Company datarmines whether transfers Fave occumred between levels in the hierarchy by re-asssssing
categarisation [based on the lowest evel Input that is significant to the fair valye measuremenl as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period,

The Company's Management delermines the policies and procedures for baoth recurring gnd non —


41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp


34

3.5

DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instrumants and ungquated financiai aszots measured
al fair value.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assatfs anF liabilities
which are required ta be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's BCcocounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies tha major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreaing the
information in the valuation compulation to contracts and other ralevant documents,

The management also compares the change in the fair value of sach sszst and liability vmr relsvant
external sources to determine whether e change is reasonakle,

For the purpese of fair valus disclusuras the Company has determined classes of assats and liabilibes on
the basis of tha nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair valua
hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair valve, Other fair value relaled disclosures are given in the
relevant notes

Disclogures for valushion methods, significant estimates and assumptions of Financial insyuments
(including those carried at amortisad cost (note 21) and Quentitative disclosures of fair value measuremeant
hierarchy (note 22),

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The, Company
FECOgnIZes revenus when the amount of revenue can be reliably measurad: when it s probable lthm future
aconomic benefits will flow to the entity, and when specific criteria have Besn met for the Company’s
activities, as describad below '

|
Toll revenue

The incorne from toll revanue from operations of the facility is accounted an receipt basis, |
Contract revenue {construction contracts)

Contract revenue associated with the construction of read is recognized as revenue by refarence to the
stage of completion of the projects at the balance sheet date The stage of completion of project is
determined by the proportion that contract cost incurred for work Perfermed up fo the balance sheet dale
bears to the estimated tolal contract cosls

Contract cost includes costs that relate; direclly 1o the specific contract and sllocated costs that are
attributable to the construction of the toll roads. Cost that cannot ba attributed to the contract activily such
as general administration costs are expensed as incurred and classified as other operating expenses.

Others

Insuranee and other claims are recagnized as revenue on cerainty of receipt basis,

Income on nvestment is recognized based on the terms of the investment. Income from rriutual fund
scheme having fixed matunity plans s accounted on declaration of dividend or on matum of such
investmants. Inlerest income is recognised on a time proportion basie taking into account the amoun
outslanding and the rates applicable. For all other financial szeets measured al amortised cosl interest
income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rale [EIR} |

Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement i
The Company has Toll Road Conceszion rights whers it Designs, Builds, Finances, Opsrates and
Tranefers (DBFOT) infrastructure used to provide public service for a specified period of time These
amangements may include Infrastructure used in a public-lo-private service concossion arrangerment for its
entire useful life,

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset
model s used to the extant that the Company recaives a right (a license) to charge users of the pubilic
sarvice. The financlal asset model is useg when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the. grantor for the congtruction servicas.
When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two models are combined
to account separately for each component. I the Company performs mara than one service (e,
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DA Toll Road Private Limited |
Motes to Financial Statements

construction or upgrade servicas and operation services) under a single contract or arr ngement,
consideration received ar receivacle is allocated by reference to the ralative fair values of th sErvices
deliverad, when the amounts arc separately (dentifiable. |

Intangible assets model

Intangible assets anging out of scrvice concesaian arrangements are accounted for as intangible sssets
whera lhe Comparny has a contractual right to charge users of service when the prejects are completed,
Apart from above per the service concession agreament the Company is obligeted fo pay the amount of
premium lo National Highways Authority of India (NHAL. This premium abligation has been trealed as
Intengible asset given it 18 pad towards getling the right to eam revenue by counstructing and operating the
roads during the concession purns

Hence, the total premium payable to the Grantor as per the Service Congeszion Agreement is aralc_:
recogrized as &n Intangible Assets| and the curresponding obligation for commitied premium iz
recugnized as premium obligating,

The intangible assets is measured al the fair value of considaration transferrad to acquire gssat, which is
the fair value of conslderation roceived ar receivable for the construction services delivarad |

Amortization of concession intangible assets |
The Intangible asset racognized gre amonised over lhe concsssion pericd en time pmpnnfnrli basiz on
Straight Line method over the perind of the concession.

|
Financial assets model [
The financial asset model applies when the oparaior has an unconditional right to receive cash or anather
financial assel from the granlor in remuneration for Concession services, In the case of concession
sarvicas, the operaler has such 2n unconditional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the payment
of amount specified or determined in the contract or the shortfall, if any, between ameounts received from
uzers of public service and amcunts specified or determined In the Contract

Financial Assets reeliting from application of Appendix A and Appendix B of Ind AS 11 are recorded in the
Balance Shest under the heading *Other Finaneial Assels’ end recognized at amortised cost.

However in case of cartain arrangarnents, the contract may include a payment commitment on the part of
the cancession grantor covering only part of investment, with the balance to be recovered from by charging
users of service . In such arrangemants the investment amount guaranteed by the concession grantor is
recognized under the financial asset model and the residual balance is recognized under the Intangible
assel medel.

Any asset carried under eoncrssion arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when [no future
economic benefits are expecled from its fulure use or disposal or when the contractyal rights to the
financial asset expira

Maintenance obligations |

Contractual obligations to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure {principally resurfacing costs and
major repairs and unschedulod maintenance which are reguired to maintzin the Infrastructure asset in
operalional condition except for any enhancement element) are recognized and measured at the best estimate
of the expenditure required to selile tha present obligation at the balance sheet date for which naxt resurfacing
would ke required as per the concession arrangement. The provision is discounted to its present value at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

liability

Taxes

Current Income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the emount expected to be recoverad from or
paid to the taxalion autharitios. 1 he fax rates and tax laws used lo compute he amount are [hod that are
chacted or substantively enacton o (he reparting date in the counlnies where fhe Company operates and

gencrales taxahle income. Current income tax relating o items recognized outside the Statement of Profit

and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (gither in other comprehensive income or
N equity). Current tax items are racoghized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive incomea or direclly in equity Management periodically evaluates positions taken|in the tax
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DA Toll Road Private Limited |
Notes to Financial Statements

returns with respect to situations in.which applicable tax regulations are subject to inrerpretmir;-n and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet Bpproach on lemporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial repening purposes at the reporting
date

Deferred tax liabiltios and essets aro recognized for all laxable temporary differences

Deferrad tax assels are recognized for unused tax lusses to the cxlent that it is probahble that taxable prafit
will be gvailable against which the deductibla temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
lossee can be utilized

The carrying amaunt of deterred tax assels is reviewed al each reporting date and reduced toithe extcnt
that it s "o longer probable that suficiant taxable profit will be available to allow all ar part of the defarrad
tax assel to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assels are re-assessed at cach reporing date and are
recognized to the extent thal it has hecome probable that future taxable profite will allow tha deferred tax
asset o be recovered. T

Deferred tax assate and ligbilities are measurad at the tax ratee that are sxpected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is seltled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have besn
ehacted or substantively enactad at the raporting date, |

Deferred tax relating to items recognized cutside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss {@ither in olher comprehensive income or in equity), Deterred tax items
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in othar comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax lizbilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to st off
current tax assats against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necassarily takes a substantial period of time 1o get ready for itali
part of the cost of the azsel, All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they accur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs thal an entity incurs in connection with the bdrrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences o the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing cests,

Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statemant nJ a siraight
line basis over the lease term,

Premium Deferment
Premium Deferral (i e. premium payable less paid after adjusting premium defermant) i aggregated under

premium deferred obligation in the balance sheet The interest payable on the above is aggrogaled under
deferred pramium obligation Interest on premium deferral is charged to the Staternent of Profit 2nd Loss

3.10 Contingent liabilities

& confingent liability is & possible obligetion that arises from Pasl events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrenca or nen-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events bayond the control of the
Company or a prasent obligation that is not recognised because it iz not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to sellie the cbligation. A contingent liability also arises in extramely rare cazes
where there iz a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measyrad reliably. The contingent
ligbility is nol recognised in tha books of aceounts but its exislenca Is disclosad in the| Financial
Stalemants.
|
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DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

211 Impairment of non-financial assets |
Mon-financiai assets are tested for impaiment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carmying amount may not be recoverabls. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceads s recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs of dispusal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assats arg grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets’ or groups of assels {cash-generating units)  Mon-financial assets that sufferad
impairmeant are raviewed for possible reversal of the impairmant al the engd of each reporing period.

312 Provisiaons

Provisions are recognized when the Company hus a prasent obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of
3 past event, it is probakle that an outflow of resources embodying economic banefits will be reruired to
seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the

aaparate az=el, but only when the rembursement is virtually certain. The Expense relating 1o a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit and _oss net of any reimbursemant.

If the effect of the time value of muney is malenal, provisions are discounted using & current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific 1o the liability, When digcounting is used, the increass in
the provision dus to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost

3.13 Employee banefits
{i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled whally
within 12 monthg after the end of tha period in which the empleyees render the related| zervics are
recognized in respect of employees' sarvices up to the end of the reporting period and are easured at
the amounts expecled to ke paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
emplayee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

(i) Leave obligations
The Company provides sick leave and privilege leave to s employees

Privilege and sick leave obligation js provided based on actuanal valuation which takes into account
the estimated portion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that will lapse, The
portion that is expected to be en-cashed js provided for based on the basic salary of the employee
and for the portion that is expected to be availed, the valuations are based on the employees’ iotal
compensation. The liability for eamed eave is also classified as current where it is expected 1o be
availed/ en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as non-current, The
amounts of current and non-current ligbility are based on actuarial estimates

(iii) Post - employment obligations

The Company operates various post-employment schames, including
g} defined benefit plang such as gratuity
(b] defined cuntrit:u.rtinn_pians such as provident fund, |

Gratuity Obligations

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheat in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation al the end of the reporting periad loss the fair
value of plan assets The defined beneft obligation is calculated annuslly by indepandent actuares
uzing the projected unit eredit method.

I'he prescnt value of the defined bencfit vbiigation is determined by discounting the estimated fulure
cash ouiflows by referance to market yields al the end of the reporting penod on govermment honds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

he net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is inciuded in employee benefit axpense
in the statement of profit and loss,
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DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Re-measurement 9ains and losses arising from experience adjusiments snd changes in actuarial
assumplions are rocognized in the period in which they oocur, directly in other comprenensive

income They are included in retainad eamings in the Staternent of Changes in Equity and in the
bafance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefi obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past servica cost,

Defined Contributian plans

The Company pays prowident fung contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations, The Company has ng further payment obligaticns ence the contributions have bean
paid. The conlrbutions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are
recognized as employes benefit expense when they are due. Prapaid centributions are recagnized
a5 an asset to the extent that a cash rafund or a reduction in the futura Paymentsz is available

3.14 Cash and cash ecquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet COMprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-term

deposits with an original maturity of three monthe or less, which are suhject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

Far the purpase of |he Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash 2quivalents consist of cash and shori-lerm
deposits, as defined above, net of vutstanding bank overdrafly as they are considered an Inlegral part of
the Company's cash management

315 Derivatives

Derivatives ara initially resognized at fai- value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsegquently re-measured fo their fair value at the end of each reporting period
316 Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for geods or sarvices that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts pavable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within

One year or less (or in the normal operatng cycle of the business if lenger). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially & fair value and subsequently measured at amortised l:nst using
the effective interest method

3.17 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rize 1o 2 financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another antity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measu rement

All financial assetz are recognised initially at fair value, in the cass of financial assets not recorded al fair
value thraugh Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly attributzbie transaction cost to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require Celivery of assets within & time Fame

For purposes of subseguent meas urement, financial assets are classified in following categaries

at amortizad cost
at fair value threugh profit or loss {(FVTPL) _
at fair value through ather comprahensive income {FYTOC)
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Financial Assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is hald within a business model whose chjective iz to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b} Contractual terms of tha assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely paymonts of
princigal and interest {5PPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the mest relevant to the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under financial
assets (except Investments) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
ara not quoted in an aclive market,

Afer inibal maasurement such financial assels ara subsequently measurad at smortised cosl using the
Effective Interest Hate (EIR) methed. Amertised cost is calculated by taking into accoynt any discount ar
premium on scquisition and fees o poste thal ere an integral part of the FIR. The EIR amoplization is
Included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment ara
recognized in the Stalement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applhes to loans |and other

Financial Asset= at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income
All investments in scopa of Ind AS 108 are measured al fair value, Tha Company has investment in mutual
funds which are held for trading, are classified as at FYTPL The Company makes such election an an
Instrurment by instrumant basis. The classification is mada an initial recognition and is irrevocable,

If the Company decides 1o classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair valua changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income. There is ne recycling
of the amounts trom Other Comprehansive Income {OCH) to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale
of investment, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Instruments
included within the FYTRL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of the Company's similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. remaved from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The righis to receive cash flows from the zssat have expired, or |
The Company has transferred its rights o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
1o pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a thirg parly under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assel. or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset, |

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates ff and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferrad nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of tha
assel, nor fransferred control of the asset the Company confinues to recognize the transferred asset to the
Bxtent of lhe Company's continuing mvalvement. In that case, the Company alsg recognizes an associated
liabifity. The transferred assat and the associated lisbility are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained

A
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Impairment of financial assets |
The Company assesses on a forward looking basiz the expecied credil lossas associated with its assets

carried at amartized cost and FVOCI, The impairment methadelogy applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in Credit risk,

The Company has thres types of financial assats subject to Ind AS 100's Bxpected credit loss madal:
*  Loans reccivables measurad a1 amortised cost !

* Retentions receivable, grant raceivable fram NHA
*  Loane given io'employees

The impairment methodology for each class of financial assats stated above 13 as follows:

Loans receivables measured at amortited cost: Loans receivables at amortised cust are generslly short
term in nature considered to be low risk, and thus the impairment Frovision is determined as 12 menthe
Bxpecled credit lossas

Loans given to employees: For loans given to employees outstanding as on the reporting dates, tha has
determinad reliably that asseesing the probability of defayll st the initial recognition of each and every loan
ar receivable would result in undue cost and efforl. Az permitied by Ind AS 109, the cradit provigion will be
determined based on whather credit risk ig low anly al each reporting date, until the loan is tlertcognizad
Uising the impairment methodology the Company has assessed thal no Ioan loss allowance needs 1y be
recorded in the books of accounts, |

Expectad cr'ed_it losz {'ECL') impairment loss aliowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is

recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflebted under
the head 'other axpenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheel presentation far various financial instrumerits is

Financial assets measured as al emortized cost and other contractual revenue recevablas - ECL is
presented as an aliowance, ie., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the nel carrying amount. Until the assat meets write-off criteria, the
Company doas nat reduce impairment allowarnce fram the gross carrying amount.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial llabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair valus through Statement
of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, trade payables or other payables.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair valuye.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, lnans ang borrowings inclllding bank
overdrafts and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measuremant of financial liakilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Loans and barrowings

This is the category mast relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the FIR method, However, the Cempany
has borrowings at floating rates. The impect of restatement of effective interest rata, year on year dus to
resel of interest rale, is not material Sains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the ligbilities arc derecognized as well as through the transaction cost armorization prucess

Retention moncy payable

This is the category most relevant 1o {he Company. Retention moneys are measured at Fair value ini_ﬁa_lly
Subsequently, they are measurad at amorised cost using the EIR (Effective inferest rate) method, Gains
and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities ars derecognizad as well as
through tha EIR amortization process.
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De-recognition

A financizl liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an axisting financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an ex :hange or
modification is freated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Lgas,

Offselting of financial instruments [

Financial azsets and linancial liabilities are offsst and the nat amount iz reported in the balante shoel if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offzet the recognized amounls snd there is an | tention to
setile on a net basis, to realize the ssse's and soiile the liabilities simultansously. (

Derivative financial Instruments
Initial recognition-and subsequent measurement

The Company uses dervative financial Instruments —principal only swaps to hedge its forcign currency
riske Such derivative financial instruments ars initially recognized at far value on the date on which g
derivaliva contract is entared into and ara subseguently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken diractly to Staterment of
Frofit and Loss.

Segment infarmation

The Company is engaged in *Road Infrastructure Project” which in the context of Ind AS 108 ‘Operating
Segment” is considered as the only secmemt. The Company's aclivities are restricted within| India and
hence, ne separate gengraphical segmeni discinsurs is considerad NECESSAry.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements I
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under ihe circumstances,

The Company makes estimates and assumplions concerning the future The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are disclosed
below.

(i) Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

applicable o the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-to-private service
Concession arrangements The Company has entered into concession arrangement with NHAI ag per which
the Company would pericipate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis the toll
roads Infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has to transfar the:
infrastructure i e. toll roads constructad to Mational Highway Authorities of India INHA),

Accordingly the Company has recognized the intangible azsets recognized as per the accuurillng policy
mentionad in Note no 3.5 ‘Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arrangement’.

(1) Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax Bssete relating to carred forward tax losses to the cxlent thare
are sufficient taxable temparary dilfzrances relaling to the same taxation authority against which the unused
tax losses can be utilized. However, the utilization of lax losses also depends on the ability of the Company
lo =afisfy cerlain tasts at the tme the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future taxablie
profits and has therefora recognized deferred tax assets in relation fo tax losses
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(liilfAmortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession pericd on fime proportion’ basis on
Straight Line method over the period of the concassion

(v} Impairment of concession intangible assels

The Cempany tests intangible assots and cash generating unils have suffarsd ary impairment, in
accordance with the accounting pelicy stated in nole 3.11. The recoverable smount of each cash
genzraling unit has been determincd based on the greater of valug-in-use and fair vaiue 255 cosls to sell
calcllations, These calculations require the use of assumptions regarding traffic flows, discount rates,
growlh rates and ather factors affocling operating activities of the cash ganerating units, [

{v] Fair valuation of derivatives and ather financial instruments |

The fair value ol financial instrurments that are not traded in an sctive market is detarmined using valuation
techniqguas The Company wses i3 judgments to sclecl a variety of methods and makes azeum inns that
arc mainly besed on markat conditions cxisling &t each balance sheel data,

(vi) Provision far resurfacing obligation (major maintenance expanditure) [

The Company records the resuracing obligation for its present obligation az per the concession
arrangernent to maintain the toll roads al every five vears during the concession period. The provision is
included in the Financial Statemcnts at the present value of the expected future payments. The calculations
to discount these amounts to their present value are based on the estimatad timing of expenditure cccurring
on the roads, i

The discount rate used 1o value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determined through
referance 1o the nature of provisicn and sk associated with the axpanditure.
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Note 4 - Intangible assets (including intangible assets under development)

T Millions

Particulars

Toll Collection
rights

Int%ngible assots
under
development

Net carrying amount as at April 1, 2015
Year ended March 2018

Opening gross carrying amount
Additions

Disposals

6,719.41

6,716.41
6,058 .46

Closing gross carrying amount

12,777 87 |

Accumulated amortization and impalrment

Opening accumulated amontizalion and impairment
Amortization charge for the year
Disposals

Closing aceumulated amortization and impairment

Net carrying amount

Year ended March 2017
Cpening gross carrying amount
Additions

1Dispnsals

17,930.29

12,777.87

12,777.87
6,748 .61
17.8930.29

Clusing gross c.arging amount

17,830.29

1,506.16

Accumulated amortization and impairmant

Opening accumulated amortization and impairmeant
Amartization charge for the year
Disposals

391.88

391.88

Closing accumulated amortization and impairment

Net carrying amount

17,538.41

1,696.19
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Mote 5 - Financial Assets - Current
Particulars
Note 5 (a) - Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts

Deposits with maturily of less than thrae maonths

Cash on hand

Note & (b) - Other financial assets - current

{Unsecured, considered good)

Grant receivable from NHAL

Securly deposits

Imerest accrued on fixed depaosils
Retention monay receivabile from NHAIL
Others

Claims receivable from NHAI

Mote 5 (c) - Other financial assets - Non - curron!

{Unsecured, considered good)
Grant receivable from NHAI
Dernvative financial assets

Note 6 - Other non-current assefs
{Unsecured, considered good)
Capital Advance

Note 7 - Other Current assots

Advance lo vendors
Advance lo employees
Prepaid Expenses

Duties and taxes receivable

T Millions
As at As at As at
31st March, 2017 Marech 31, 201 April 1, 2015

147 64 10.58 310.87

280.00 - *
12.52 4 Gl 3.06
440.16 15.24 319.83

1,134.44 53218 -
0.08 0.18 0.30

1.54 - -
o 032
2527 17.07 .00

6.50 - -
1,167.83 54941 0.62

- 132.21 311.41

- 10.45 -

- 142.66 311
222.45 1,284 .41 2.276.40
222.45 1,294.41 2.276.40

26.56 43.84 77.65
3.30 3.08 2.51
15.15 11.10 129.23
75.54 4900 74.65
120.55 107.02 284.04
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Mote B - Share Capital and Other equity

Mote Ba - Authorised Share Capital T Millions
= : Mos of Shares As at As at As at

Faicularm 31stMarch, 2017 31st March, 2016 April 1, 2015

At the beginning of the year 1,00,00,000 100,00 100.00 100.00

Add : Increasa during the year = >

Al tha and af the year 1,00,00,000 100.00 100.00 ; 100.00

Mate 8b - lIssued, subscribad and paid-up aquity

share capital

At the beginning of the year 90,18,000 2018 0,18 90.18

Add ' Incraasa during the year - = -

Al lhe end of the year 90,168,000 9018 2018 00,18

Mote 8c - Terms and rights attachad to equity sharcs

The Company has only one class of shares referred tn as Equity Shares having a Par Value of Rs. 10 in the &vent of liquidation of the company,
e holders of equily shares will be entiticd fo receive romaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential ameunts. The distrioution

will be in properlion to the nurmber of equity shares held by the sharcholdors,

MNote 8d - Reconciliation of nos of Shares

Particul As at As at | As at
articulars 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 April 1, 2015
MNos of Shares at the beginning of the year 90,18,000 QD.1$,I.'.IE|'EI €0,18,000 |
Add ; Nos of Shares issued during the year - | - -
Mos of Shares at the end of the year 90,18,000 G0,18,000 B0,18,000
Mote 8o - Shares held by the Holding Company
Reliance Infrastructura Limited a0, 18,000 80,18,000 80,18,000
Mote Bf - Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares
Reoliance Infrastructure Limited
Mos of Shares 90,18,000 80,18,000 90,18,000
Yo of holding 100% 100% 100%
The Holding Company has pledged 4599 180 Equity Sheres for availing various term loans,
Mote 8a - Sub-ordinated debt {in nature of equity)
T Milllans
Bartieul As at As at | As at
arbiculars st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 April 1, 2015
Al the beginning of the year 2 876.55 2 B602.85 2,038.75
Increase / (decrease) during the yaar 1,.572.55 27370 564.10
Al the end of the year 4.44%,10 2,876.55 2,602.85

Terms and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debts v/ vsed by helding company

it Subcrdinated debt is the part of Sponsars Equity fram e prameters of the compnay for the project, which is unsecured and interest free as per

Comman Loan agreement with the lenr=rs;

i) No repayment/redemption/interest servicing allowed 0 ong the moratorium pericd of the lang term project loan.

Mate 8h - Corporate Guarantes (in nalure of equity)

Al the beginning ol the year 1.20 - -
Increase ! (decrease) during the yvear - 1.20 -
At the end of the vear 1.20 1.20
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T Millions

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

As at
1st April, 2015

Maote 9¢ - Retained Earnings

At the beginning of the year
Met Profit for the Period

ltems ot olher comprehensive income recognised
directly in relained earmings
- Remeasurgmens cf post-employemants
obligations {net of tax)

Lividends paid during the year
At the end of the year

2.851.72
127.30

(1.55)

1.751.11
1,103.07

(2.47)

2,977.47

2.851.72

175111

1 Millions

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2017

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
1st April, 2015

Mote 8d - Securities Fremium Account

At the beginning of the year
Premium on shares issued during the year

At the end of the year

Nature and purpose of securities premium

810.72

810.72

810.72

810.72

§10.72

810.72

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the

provisions of the acl.
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Note 10 (a) - Borro:
Particulars

Securad

Term loans

From banks
Rupee term loan
Foreign currency

From financial insi
Rupee term loan

Total
Rupee Term Loan :

The Borrowings arr
Consortium of lend

{iy a first ranking pa
future, except the [

{ii} a fiest ranking p

Sub-Accounts whorn

deposited therein =
Account,

{iiiy a first ranking |
specified in paragr
both present and |

(i) a first ranking
Borrower in, to an
contractor guarantc

(v} Repayment Tr-

a) Repayment of th

b) Repayment of
31/0372018.

(wi} the applicable
Mauritius is 3 mon

(wii) The Company b
MNote 10 (b) - Borro:
Particulars

Unsecurod
Lean from Holding

1% - Mon current

Limited
ttements

T Millions

As at
April 1, 2015

As at As at
31st March, 2017 March 31, 2016

544777 1,813.04 24260
3,226.29 2106.81 =
2068610 1,060.30 =
11,370.16 5,080.25 242.60
“eternal Commer: 2l Borrowings (ECB) from Banks & Finaneial Institutions :

L ~

v the way of torms stated in Commaon Loan Agreement enlered between the Company and

1 martgagedchara s over all the Borrower's immoveable and movable properties, both present and
WEEeTS.

zeu charge on all the RBorrower's bank accounts including, but not limited to the Escrow Account/ its

rvenues, Desborssments, recoivahbles shall be deposited and in all funds from time to time
i Permitted Inuesiments or ol socuritics representing all amounts credited lo the Escrow

w51 charge on

Wa ana (iv)

movable tangible and intangible assets of the Borrower (other than those
wik ineluding bot net imited 1o ils goodwill, undertaking and uncalled capital,
tipl the Project 1=

charge over | assignment of the right, title, interests, benefits, claims and demands of the
roany letter of crelil, guarantens  (excepl tha guarantees issued in favour of NHAI including
dated da and perforrmance bond provided by any party to the Project Documents,

na L.aan shall be P orty Sixt coarery stnoctured instalments starting from 31/03/2018

ram Intosa |

S Mawritius shall be in 26 guarerly structured instalments staring from

for Hupes
b ad%n) 4 B

sl man waring from 11 50% to 13.50% p.a. and for ECB from Intesa and SEI

ded 45,80 THD y shares wil 'he consorluim lenders for availing various loans.
rrent
hs at As at
31st March, 2017 March 31, 2016

As at
April 1, 2015

154.40
154,40

114.50
114.50

26.80
26.80
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; As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2017 March 31, 2016
Mote 11 - Trade Payables
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises - -
[Mua to other than Micro and Small Enterprises 757.51 78.11

757.51 78.11

T Millions
Az at

April 1, 2015

14.87
T CHERT

{a) Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined undar the "Micro, Small and Medium Entaerprise Developmenl Act, 2008" is
hkazad on the information available with the Company regarding the slalus of registration of such vendors under the said Act,
as per the intimation received fram them on raquests made by the company. Thers are no ovardus principal
amountsiinterest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheel dale, There are no delays in
payment made to such suppliers during the year ar for any earlier years and accordingly there is no intarest paid or
oulstanding interest in this regard in respect of payments made during the year or brought forward from previous years.

Mote 12 (a) - Other financial liakilities - current

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Current Maturities of long term debt 94,21 56.32 .
Interast Accruad ) 1.61 0.88 -
Craditors for Capital expenditure 467.29 2,385.59 4,046.11
Employes _benfits payable 15.08 17.46 0.55
Total 578.10 2,460.28 4,046.66
Mote 12 (b} - Other financial liabilities - Non - current
Mon - Current
Retention money payabla 325 651.46 367.74
Derivative hability ( Mark to Markat) on derivative
inslruments 132,69 - -
Total 135.94 651.46 A6T. T4
Mote 13 (a) - Provisions - Current
Current
Provision for employee benefils
- Gratuity - - 0.00
- Leave encashment 0.39 0.34 0.16
' 0.39 0.34 0.16
Mote 13 (b) - Provigions - Non - Current
Pravision for employee benefits
d Gra[uity 3N .05 &
- Leave encashment 962 7.80 3.66
12.93 7.86 3.68
Mote 14 - Other current liabilities
Duties and taxes payable 2.57 12,99 O.24
2.57 12.99 8.24
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Mote 15 - Revenue

Cperating income

- Construction income

- Income from toll collections
Compensation towards toll suspension

]

Nate 16 - Other income
Mark to market gain on dervaties instrument

Interest income

Cn financial assels caried at amortised cost
= On fixed deposits
- Others

Miscellaneous income

Note 17 - Toll Operation and Maintainerice expenses

Subconlracting expenses
Maintainence of Roads
Electricity expenses

Handling Charges

Site and other direct expenses

Note 18 - Employee benefits expenses

Salaries wages and bonus

Contribution to provident funds and other funds
Gratuity

Leave encashment

Slafl welfare expensas

Note 19 - Finance Costs

Interest on loan
Other finance charges
Derivative hedging cost

MNote 20 - Other cxpenses

Rent

Rates & laxes

Insurance

Legal and Hrotessional Charges

Expenditure toward Corporate Social respunsibility
Auditors Remuneration

Travelling and Conveyance

Olher miscellaneous expenses

¥ Millions

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

5.624.56
1645 45 1.648.81

67.25 i
5.337.26 755867
10.45
B4 89 4F.T5H
5.98 2.60
- 0.02
0.04 0.01
50,71 50.82

|

8928 61.99
677.22 153.56
6.13 4.72
2.76 3.64
62.85 | 63907
538.24 75780
61.22 81.98
3.62 2.86
158 0.94
385 547
116 1.08
7143 7234
338.28 19.04
12.69 29 50

143.14 :
494,11 2563
14.42 8.89
0.91 0.35
1592 2H 18
33.54 53.25

15.0% :
0.53 0.39
3.13 2.74
740 1497
90.94 107.77
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Mote 21 - Fair value measurements

Financial Instruments by category
Signficance of financial instruments

T Millions

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2017

As at
31st March, 2016

Az at
1st April, 2015

‘Financial assets

At amortized Cost
Grant recoivable from NHAI
Security Deposits
Interest acerued on fixed deposits
Other receivables
Cash and Cash equivalent
Claims receivable frem NHAI

At Falr value through profit & loss
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

At amortised Cost
Floating Rate Borrowings
Trade Payables
Ratention money payable
Interest accrued but not due
Employee Benafils Payabla
Craditors for capital expenditure

At Fair value through profit & loss
Fareign currency forward exchange contracts

Total financial liabilities

1.134.44 664 27 1141
0.08 g D.30
1.54 - 3

2527 17.07 oG
44016 1524 19,83
6.50 -

- 10.45 =
1,607.99 T07.31 631.86
11464.37 53136 .56 242.80

TR 7B 14.87
325 651.45 367.74
151 0.68 =

15.09 17.45 0.55

467.29 2,385.59 4.046.11

132,69 -

12841.72 B270.08 4671.88

i
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DA Toll Road Private Limited
Motes to Financial Statements

Note 22 - Fair value Hierarchy

{a) Fair value hierarchy - Recurring fair value measurements T Millions

As at As at i As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 1st April, 2015

Particulars

Financial assets

At Fair value through profit & loss
Level 1
Mutual fund Investmeants

Derivatives not designated as hedges

Leval 2 '
Frincipal swap ‘ 10.45
Total inancial assets - 10.46 -

Financial liabilities

Derivatives not designated as hedges

Level 2
Principal swap 132.69 -
Total financial liabilitics . 132.69 : = -

ib) Fair value hierarchy - Assots and liabilities which are measured at amortisad cost
for which fair values are disclosed

As at As at As at

Particulars 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 1st April, 2015

Financial assets

Level 3 :

Grant recaivable from MHAI 1,134 .44 €64 37 31141

Total financial assets 113444 864.37 311,41
Financial liabilities

Level 3

Fleating Rate Borrowings 11,464.37 5,136.56 242,60

Relention money payahle 3.25 651.46 367.74

Total financial liabilities 11467.63 57688.02 610.34

Recagnised fair value measurements

Level 1. Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices, This mcludes mutual funds that Rave quoted
orice. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAYV

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are nat traded in an active merket (for example, over-theicounter derivalives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible un entity-spacific
estimales. Il all =ignificant inputs required to fair value an instrumsnt are observable, the instrument i includad in laval 2

Level 3: If one or maore of the significant inputs is not based on abearvable market data, the instrumant is includad in laval 3. Thiz is the
casa for borrowings. debentures, Rerention money payable and hedging derivative includaed in level 3

Valualion technigue used to determine fair value
apecific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:
- the: use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

* the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is delermined using forward exchange rates al the balance
sheet date

* the tair value of the remaining financial instruments is detarmined using discounted cash flow analysis.
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{c) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

T Millions

Particulars

As at
M=t March, 2017

As at
st March, 2016

As at
1st April, 2015

Financial assols

Carrying value of financial assets at amorlised cost
Grant receivable from NHAI

Total Financial assets at amortised cost
Fair value of financial assets carriad at ameortised cost
Grant receivable from MIHA)
Total Fair value of financial assets at amortised cost
Financial liabilities

Carrying value of financial liabilities al amorlised cost
Floating rate borrowigng
Retention monsy

Fair value of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Floaling rate borrowigns
Hetention monay

1,134.44 BB 37 311.41
1,134.44 664.37 31141
1,134 44 B64.97 311.41
1,134.44 664.37 311.41
11,46 o 5,136.56] 242 60
3.25 £51.46/ 38774
11,467.63 5,780.02 610.34
11,454.37 5.136.56 242 B0
3.25 B51.45 367.74
11,467.53 5,788.02 610.34

The carrying value amounts of fixed depasits, interest accrued on depoists, retention money receivable, insurance claim receivable,

cash and cash equivalents,

trade payables, interest accruied, employes benefi's payable and craditors for capital expenditure approximate their fair value due to

thair shart term nature.

Faor financial assels and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amaunts are egual to the fair values.


41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp


DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Finaneinl Statements

Mote 23 - Concassion arrangemonts - Main fealures

Name ul'-erlltit:r .

¥ Millions

Description of the

Significant tarms of the arré;gement

Intangible Assets

Financial Asset

arrangement Gross book | Net book value
valua
DA Toll Road Private {Financing, design, building [Period of concession: 2012 - 2038 March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2017
Limited and operation of 180 Remuneration : Toll 17893028 17.536.41 1,134.44

kilometre long six lane toll
road between Delhi and
Agra on Mational Highway

2

Investment grant from concession grantor

Yes

Infrastructure return at the end of
concession parizd | Yes

Invesiment and renewal obligations - NIl

Re-pricing dates @ Yearly

Basis upan which re-pricing or re-
negotiation is detarmined : Inflation
Premium payabia to granter  Nil

March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2016

April 41,2016 | April 1, 2015

March 31, 2016

664 37

April 1, 2015

311.41
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4 Toll Road Frivate Limited
Nates to Financial Statements

Note 24 - Foreign currency exposure

a} Particulars of derivative Instrumerits

T Millions
Particulars % Bi As at | A:_at
3st March, 2017 31st March, EWB 1st April, 2015
T
Principal only Swap 713 2309 -
3713 2308 B
|
Mo of instrumante 4 2
Mo derivative instrumants are acquired for speculation gurposo.
b} Foreign currency expasures not hedged by derivative instioment or otherwise:
g Asal As at As at
articulars 315t March, 2017 31st March, 2016 1st April, 2015
Barrowings [including interest acerued bul not dug) in UST in millions 68288 42 22 -
Borrowings (including inlerest accrued bul not due) in INE in millicns 407768 2.797.08
4,077.68 2,797.09 i
Note 25 - Expenditure in Farcign Currcncy ‘
Particulars Yoar ended Yaar endad | As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 1st April, 2015
Interest on External Commarcial Berrowings (ECE) 151.34 54 -
Agency fees on External Commercial Borrowings (ECH) 13.58 107.82 34.11
1684.93 198.36 3411
Note 26 - Capitalisation of exchange differences on Iong torm foreign o) irrency monetary ibem
The Company has opted to defer { capitalize axchange &1 ronses ansing on long-term foreign currency monetary item in accordance with para 464 of
AS 11 of Previous GAAP. Ind AS 21 requires all exchanse qaeylosses arsing on fareian currency monetary to be recognized under Statement of prafit
and loss, The Company has availed option available urdor 150 A5 101 a5 per which it has it can cantinue the Indian GAAP policy for accounting of
exchange gaindloss anising on account of translation of looy 20 loreign urrency item recognized before transition date i.e. March 31, 2015, However

exchange gain / loss arising on any new long-term forciin currency manatany tem recognized after the transition date ie March 31, 2015 would be
recognized to statement of profit and loss as required under Ind AS 21

a
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DA Toll Road Private Limitod
Motes to Financial Stalements

Hote 27 - Taxation
27{a) Income tax expense

T Millions

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
{a) Income tax expense
Current tax
Currant tax on profils o tho yoar 1380 2580 D{:I.
Adjustiments for currant fax of prior periods = 35.07
Tolal current tax expense (A) 13,60 244.93
Dederred fax
Decreasel{increasa) in dafarred tax assels 102.68 18281
{Decreazelfincrease In detarred tax liabilities {196.88) {201 63
Total deferred tax expensei{benefit) {B) (94.20) {39.02)
Income tax expense. {A+8) (50801 205 81
Income tax expense is attributable to:
Frohl Froen condinuing operations
Proft from discentinusd operation -
27 {l) Recanciliation of tax oxpense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's ax rate: ot
e March 31, 2047 March 31, 2016
Prafit fram continuing cperations batara isoarme: L eepeses 4670 1,308 98
Prafit from discaminwing operalion befome income {ax EXpEnsE = =
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34,608% 16.18 453.01
Tax effect of amounts which ars not deductibia (taxable) in calculating taxable
INCome:
‘Uisallcrwanne Ufs 438 1.52
Deductions under chaptar Wi of the Income Tax Act {13 B4) (454.52)
Incomy Tax urder section 115 J0 an the book profit .87 279,36
Deductons allowable under saction 115J8 353 064
Cither tamparsry differences [103.85) (28.94)
Effect on account of transition (1/5 of retainad samings) 212 |
Corporale social respoensibility expenditure 2.21 =
Adjustments for currant tax of prior periods® . [35.07)
Incoma tax expense charged Lo statement of Profit and Loss (80.60) 205.8
27(c) Deferred tax (liability) ! Asset
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to :
] . ¥ Millions
As at As at Ag at
Farti
a culn.rt e . 3151 March, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 s
Intangible asees
Toll collecton rights 503.21
Intargiale assets under davalopmaant 157,78 agd. 12 282448
Cther items
Derivaiives 4592 {3.62)
Grant recenabla fram NHAI [324.88) (228.83) {147.57)
Barrawings (TB.51) [BT.34) (3.53)
Retenticn Money Payable (10.07) [10.74) (17.72)
Retirement bunefit obligation B.86 2 B? 132
Met defarrad tax {labililyjiassel 230.33 135.32 94.93
Movement in deterred Lax liability ! asset
| I Milllans
Particulars Intangible assols - toll  Intanglble assats Ciher items Total
collection rights umder
~ developmant L
&g st April 01, 2015 = 28240 {166.58) el Ti)
Changudioredited) during the vear
1o prafit or lose - 201 83 {162.61) 3900
o ol comprahansive income - - {1.31} (1an
As at March 31, 2016 7 464,12 (332.51) 13161
Az at April 01, 2016 464,12 (332 51) 131.81
Chargedficreditad) during tha quarter
o profit or lnss 3. 21 (306, 34) (I0Z2.88) ba 20
o other comprahensive income = = (0.62) [0.82}
As at March 31, 2017 Ak3.21 157.79 {438.01 224.35
2T,
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DA Toll Road Private Limited
Motes to Financial Statements

Maote 28 — Financial risk management

Th Company activities exposes it to market risk, liguidity risk and cradit risk. In arder to minimize any adverse affects on the financial performance
of the group, derivative financial instruments, such as principal only swaps are entered to hedge certain forgign currency risk exposurs. Dervatives
are used exclusively for hedging purpose and not as trading or speculative ingtruments

This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and haw the entity is manage the risk.

Risk Exposure arising  Measurement Management
from
Credit risk Cash and cash Aging analysis Diverzification of
aguivalents, trade  Credit ralings bank deposits, credit
recaivables, limits and letters of
financial assets credil
measured at

amortized cost,

Market risk — fareign exchange Recognized financial Cash flaw Actively Managet
assets and liabilities  forecasting ; [
not'canominated in - Sensitivilty analysis
Indlan rupee (INR)

Markel sk — interast rate Lang-term Sensitivity analysis  Actively Managed
barrewings at
vanable Rates
Liguidity risk Borrowings and Rolling cash flow  Availability of
other labilities forecasts committed credit
lings and borrowing
facilities

The Company risk management is carried out by a project firance team and central treasury team {(group treasury] under policies appraved by
board of directors. Group treasury identifies. evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-operalion with the group’'s operating units, The
Management of the company provides written princicles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as interast
rata risk and credit nsk, use of derivative financial instrument ard non-derivative financial instrument, and investments of excess liguidity.

Commodity risk:

The Company requires for implementation (construction, operation and malntenance} of the projects, such as cement, bitumen, steel and other
censtruction materials. Far which, the company entered inte fixed price contract with the EPC contractor and O&M Contractor so as to manage our
exposure o price increases in raw materials. Hence, the sensitivity analysis |s not required

Market risk — interest rate risk

The Bank loans follows floating rates wilh resats defined under agreements. While interest rate fluctuations carry a risk on financials, the company
eam foll income which is linked to WPI thus providing a natural hedge 1o the interest rate risk.

a) Interest rate risk exposure 2 Millions
Az at As at Asg at
Particulars
. 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 1st April, 2015
Variable Hate Borrowings 11,464.37 5,136.56 242 60
Fixad Ratc Bomowings . - =
Total 11,464.37 5,136.56 — 24260
Sensitivity
Profit or loss is senaibve to higher/lower interest income from borrowings as a result of changas in interest rates,
: F= ai As at o As at
Impact on profitfloss after tax 315t March, 2017 31st March, 2016 1st April, 2015
Interest rates {increase) by 1 basis points (90.57) [40.58) (1.82]
Intarast rates decrease by 1 basis points 80 .57 40.58 2
F.o ‘a_r-"_‘-']h\l T?‘::C'A v

I

A |
!
1}
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DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

MNote 28 — Financial risk managemerit
Currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will flucluate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Comapny exposure lo the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates Lo the
company foreign currency loan i.e. External Commercial Borrowings (ECB). The Company has an aggregate of USD
50 mn ECBs

Foreign currency risk exposure T Millions

As at As at As at

Particulars 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2015

Financial llabilities

Inlerest Accrued but not duc on foreign borrowings 0.82 0.44 |
External commercial borrowings 3,242.50 2,163.25
Total 3,243.32 2,163.66 =
e e—— =

Sensitivity analysis:

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other
variablas held constant. The impact on the company profit before tax is due o changes in the fair value of monetary
liabilities, The Company has used exemplion under Ind AS 101 for existing long term foreign currency non-maonetary
iterns. The Company continue to apply the policy adepled for treatment of exchange differences arising on long-lerm
foreign currency maonetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset for items recognized on or before
March 31, 2013 and hence, not considered in disclosure of foreign currency sensitivity. With all other variables held
constant, the Copmany profit before tax is affected through the impact on change of foreign curency rate on interest
accrued but not due on ECB loans, as follows

Sensitivity T Millions
As at As at As at

Impact on profit after tax 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 1st April, 2015

INR/USD closing exchange rate 64,85 66.255 -

INRIUSD (increase) by 6% (153.73) (102.56)

INR/USD decrease by 6% 153.73 102.56
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DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 28 — Financial risk management

Liquidity risk |

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral cbligations without ingurring
unacceptable losses, The Company objective is to, at all times maintain oplimum levels of liguidily to mest its cash and collateral
requirements. The Company closely monitars its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. Il maintains adequate
sources of financing including debt from banks at an optimized cost. The liquidity risk is managed an the basis of expected malurity dates of
the financial liabilities. The average credit period taken to setlle trade payables is about 30 to 60 days. The canrying amounts are assumed to
ke a reasonable approximation of fair value, The follewing tzble analyses financial liabilitics by remaining contractual maturilies.

The table belew analyses the group's non-derivative finansial liabilities and nel-settled derivative financial habiliies into relevant maturily
groupings based on the remaining period at lhe balance shest date to the contractual maturily date. Derivative financial liabililies a8
included in the analysis if their contractual maturitics are essential for an underslanding of the timing of lhe cash flows. The amounts
disclosed in the lable are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,

# Millions

Ag at March 31, 2017 Less than3 Between 3 Between1 Between2 Over 5 years Tatal

months months and1 yearand 2 years and 5

year years years :

Non-derivalives
Borrowings - 94.21 409.28 2,134.19 9,053.52 11,691.20
Trade and other payables 189.38 568.13 757.51
Other financial liabilities - 648.92 - - | - 648.92
lotal non-derivatives +_ 189.38 1,311.27 __409.28 2,134.19 9,053.52 13,097.63
As at March 31, 2016 . Lessthan3 Between 3 Between1 Between2 Over5 years Total

months months and1 yearand 2 years and 5

year years years

Non-derivatives
Boarrowings - - 894,56 1,648 24 3,646.12 5.388.93
Trade and other pavables 18.53 58.59 - - - 78.11
Cther financial liabilities 111.96 2,974 .49 - - - 3,086.45
Total non-derivatives 131.49 3,033.07 __ 94.56 1,648.24 3,646.12 8,553.49
As at April 1, 2015 Less than 3 Between 3 Betweon 1 Between 2 Qver 5 years Total

months monthsand1 yearand2 years and 5 |

- year years years

MNon-derivatives
Borrowings 5 - - 252.80 - 252,80
Irade and other payables .72 11.15 - 2 - 14.87
Other financial liabilities . 4 046 .66 418394 = - 4 46561
Total non-derivatives o 3.72  4,057.82 418.94 252.80 - 4,733.28

Pl
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DA Toll Road Private Limited
Motes to Financial Statements

Mote 29 - Capital risk management
Ihe Company objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for
i shareholders and henefits for other stekeholders, and

i Maintain an optimal capital structure te reduce the cost of capital,

For the purpose of the company capital management, capital includes issued equily capital, share premium, sub-debis and
all olher aquity reserves atlribulable lo the equity holders of the parant. The primary objective of the company capital
management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The Cumpany manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend
payment ta sharcholders, relurn capital to sharchelders or issus interest free sub-ordinate deht The Company monilors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt, The Company paolicy is to keep
optimum gearing ratic. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing lvans and borrowings, trade payables, less
cash-and cash equivalents,

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company capital management, amongst ather things, aims to ensure that it
meels financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements,
No changes were made in the objactives, policies or processes for managing capital for year ended March 31, 2017 and
March 31, 20185,

Consistent with others in the industry, the group menitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ralio:

Mel debt including total barrowings (net of cash and cash equivalents)
divided by
Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet)

The company strategy is to maintain a debt to equity ratio within {0.01) to 1.50 The gearing ratios at year ended March 3,
2017 and March 31, 2016 were as fallows:

% Millions

Particulars As at As at ! As at

J1st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 | April 1, 2015
Net debt {a) 11,178.61 5,235.82 (50.43)
Equity (b) 8,328.67 6,630.37 5,264.86
Net debt to equity ratio (a) / (b) 1.34 0.79 (0.01)
Particulars As at As at As at

31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 April 1, 2015
MNet debt (a) 11,178.81 523582 (50.43)
Eejuity (b) 8,328.67 6,630.37 5.254.86
Nebt debt plus Equily (c = a+h) 19,507 28 11,866 19 5,204.44
Gearing ratio {a) / ¢ 0.57 0.44 (D.01)
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A& Toll Read Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 30- Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans £ Millions
a) Defined contribution plan

The following amaount recogrized as an expense in Statement of profit and lozs on accaunt af provident fund and olher funds. There are na other cbligations cther than
the conlribulion payable to the respective authorities.

Year ended Year ended Az at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Contribution to provident fund and othar funds 2.44 1.580 1.21
Tatal ] Z.44 1.98 1.2

aj) Defincd henefit plan

The Compary has a dafined bensfit plan (Gratuity) for its ernployees. The gratuily plan is geverned by the Payment of Gratulty Act, 1672, Under the Act,

amployee who has completed live years of service is enlilled to specific benefit. The level of banefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary
at retiremuent age. Every employes who hes completed five years or more of sarvics gats a gratuity on depariure al 15 days salary (st drawn salary) for 2ach
complated year of service as per the provisicn of the Payment of Graluily Acl, 1972 with fotal ceiling on gratulty of Rs. 1,000,000/~ The $aid gratuity plan is funded.

The following tables summanes the The amounts recognised in the balance shast and the movements in the nel defined benafit obligafjon over the year are as follows:

As at As at As at

31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 April 1, 2015
Opening defined banafit liability / (assets) 8.51 3.5 1.51
Net employee benefit expense recognised |1I'I the employee cost
Curveni service cost 1.68 0896 .54
f*agt sarvice cosl 5 - -
Interest cost on benefit obligation 085 027 13
(Gain] / losses on selllemeant = - -
Mot benofit expense 225 1.23 0.68
Amaunt recorded in Other Comprehansive Income (OCI)
Measurement during the pericd dus to ;
Return on plan assets, exciuding amounts included in interest expensaiincomea) = X -
Actuarial loss [ {gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 095 0.04 0.39
Actuarial less f (gain) arising on account of demegraphic assumplions - . "
Expenance {gains}iosses 143 3.72 LR
Amount recognized in OCI 238 37 1.40
Henafits payments from plan {0.55) - - oar
Clesing nel defined benafit liability / (asset) i 12.59 8.51 35

As at As at As at

3zt March, 2017 31st March, 2018 April 1, 2015
Opening fair value of plan assols : 8.48 3.5 1.51
Net employee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost
ImMerest cost ! {incormch on plan asset a7 028 b1g
{Gain) / losses on seflament ? S
Het benefit expense 067 .29 DB

Amaount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income [(OC])

Measurement during tha paried dua to :

Return o plan asscls, excluding amounts included In Intarest expensallincome) ool - o - 0.00
Actuanal lags / {gain) arising from change in financial sssumptions - . )
Sicluarial loss f (gain) arlsing on aceount of demographic assumplions - - -

Exprricnce {(gams ) iosses z 2
Asza gailing nat recogrised as an assol - - -
Amount recognized In OCI 0. - oo - 0.00
Empioyer contributions/premiums pald 0.r0 4,58 192
Denafits Paid (065} [ = - 0.07
Closing falr value of plan asscts 928 .46 i,
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DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Mote 30- Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

The net (lability)/azset disclosed abeve relates to funded plan Is as follows:

Fresent value of funded abligations
Fair value of plan assets
Amcunt nat recognised as an assel (asset celling)

Net liability is blfurcated as follows :
Currant
Mor-currani

Tatal

Discount rata
Expected tale of relumn on plan agests (pa.}
Ealary ezcalation rate (p.a )

Mortality pra-retiremeant

A guantitative analysis lor significant assumption is a5 shown below:

Assumptions -Discount rate

Sensidlivily Leveal

Impact on defined benelit obligation -In % Increase
Impact on dafined banefit obdigation -in % decrease
Assumptions -Future salary increases
Sensitivity Leve!

Impaet on defined benefit obligation -in % increase
Impacton defined benefit abligation -n % decrease

T Milligns
As at Az af As at
31st March, 2017 F1s1 March, 2018 April 1, 2015

12.58 I 3.51 3.51

924 B.48 3.5

4.31 0.05 0.00
33 0.06 I

3.1 0.08 0.00

T.05% 7 B0 74452,
7.50% 7 505 T.50%
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Indfian Assured
Mortality Lives Maortality Lives Mortality

(2008-08) {2006-08) {2008-08)

50 bp 50 bp 50 bp

-5.12% -5.05% -5.58%

5.51% | 5.43% B.02%:

|

50 bp 50 bp 50 bp

546% 5.42% 5.01%

5. 12% -5.08% -5.60%

The table below shows the expecled cash flow profila of the benefits (¢ be paid to the current memberzhip of the plan based on past service of the employaess as ai the

valuation date:

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Batween 2 and 5 years

Between B and 9 years

For and Bayond 10 years

Total expected payments

The average duration of the definad benefit plan abligation at the end of the reporting

pediod

Plan Assets Composition

Non Quoted
Insurer Maneged Funds

Asg at As at As at
31st March, 2017 J1st March, 2016 Aprll 1, 2015
.39 029 013
228 1.87 0.63
4,89 405 0.90
2247 16.24 B.50
30,03 22.26 10.36
10.61 years 10.47|years 11.58 yoars
As at A3 at| As at
31st March, 2017 st Harch| 2018 April 1, 2015
H.28 | B4E 3.41
9,28 B.46 E .51
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Motes to Financial Statements

Mote 31 - Related Party Transactions

As per EC.EIJLFI'ItI'ﬂg standard Ind AS 23 as prescribed under lhe Companics (Accounting Standard]. i
Rules, 2015, the related parties and transactions are Tsclasord bolow

Helding Company
Heliance Infrastructure Limited

Key Management Personnc|

Kaushik Pal - Director (w.c.f, October 1, 2015)
Sudhir R Hoshing - Director (till February 23, 2015)
Madan Biyani - Director (w.e [ March 21, 21115)
arilatha Gopal- Company Scoretary

Person having singificant influence on the Holding Company

Shri Anit .0 Ambani
Details of transactions and cloging balance

Particulars

Transactions during the year :

Toll operation and maintainence expensos
R Infra

Reimbursement of expenditure paid by

R Infra

Sub-debts received (in nature of equity)
R Infra

Inter-corporate deposit received during the year
R Infra

Balances at the year end

Inter-corporate deposit
R Infra

Other current liabilities
R Infra

Sub-debts (in nature of equity)
R Infra

Equity share capital (excluding promiom)
H Infra

March 31, 2017

43.80

1.28

1,572,585

39.90

154.40

50.70

444810

80.18

March 31, 2016

4212

5.46

273.70

87.70

114.50
82.70

2,876.55
|

|1 90.18

T Millions

April 1, 2015

25.80

42.07

2,602.85

90.18
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HMios la Finaneisl Statemenis |

Maote 32 - FAIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS
The Company has prepared hese Fiancial Statemens which comply with Ind A5 aoplicable for the penods erding March 31, 2017 tagaihar with the comparaiies perad data as al
ani for tha yeaf ended March 31, 2006 resgeciively ae described in the summsry of sigrdicant Beoounting podicies. In praparing thess finencial aatements, the Compary has
consdarad Aol 01, 2015 88 the dale of transibon and hes edjusted Bie amounts repoAnd prosioasly |0 the fnancial stabemsnts prapared in accordency with the. accoungng
staridurds nalifiod under Gompanias (Accountng Standand) Hules, 2006 (a8 amerded| and olhar rofovard provialars af e Aot (Preyiows SAAP or lndan et

This sdoplice of Ind AR has boon camiod nu bn pecordanee with Ind A3 109, First-time Adoolion of Indian Accnurting Serdands.

In preparng thass Ind A5 Fitarcis Statempnts, the Cempany a2 syalled semain exemptans and excephons in accardencn with Ind AS 101, 81 explained beicw. The resutng
iffarencs between tha carmyng values of he assels and iebililias 0 ths Fnencal Styements as al e Tanssce dolo undor Il &% and Previous GAAP have been recagnised
diracty 11 aguty (retaired oamings or anollwr sppropriate cabapary of cauity). This rsle sxalaing the adustmarits mady by tho Croempeay 0 restating ite Provioos GAAP Nrancial
Girtomnnss Aekising the Ualoncse Shect as at Apal 07, 3015,

B Ewnmpts

Ired A 104 Allaws frsl-tir adaplans CoFsan QUEMANONS iOm M ase appication of cerain regurersnks under nd A5 The Carrpany has slected % gpoly the falicaing
nptlansl crompdana from retrospechue appication of Ind AS.

trom redr Livg lisalivzm

[ak Leng barrn Tervign sumency monctary iem
Tha Ceroany has used axemalon urrddr Iod A2 101 for arlsting Inneg tem forsign currency manetary itam. The Compeny nonfreiss 10 appdy e palcy adopled for reatmen of
unchange dtarennng adaig on |eag semm forsan cumency Manelary dams porviving o Anquisien of & Seareciabie assets for e itams reoagnised on or befnr March 31, 7015

(b} Amaortization of ntangible assubs arising from sordiop eoncesslon arsngemants
Trx CNMPARy Fas wved exemption unde nd AS 101 ard has cortinue in adopt the Accounting policy of Pravivus GAAP for amertiration far Integible aessts ansing rom
EHIWIR GUNGRERION ATARGRMANTS FALALING 15 Soncesson bl roads. intanyibie asesds moagnzed In me Finassal Stataments,

B.  Frespiinns from retrospactive apodicalion
Tha Campany has appied e Tolowing saceplians from full redmaspredve appicatan of Ind A% aF Mgt iy roguired unor md AS 101:

tal Estimalbes
On assassmen] o fe uelimales made undor the Pravieis GAAP francial statenants, e Company bas conttdod mat hese 5 ng nacEREdy b reviea thk wslimaies widor o
AE, A3 Barg i o abiectve ewdenca thel Suss sslimutos worn in ormar Haweves, sstimabes, fak wene reguied undar ind A5 hue ne recuinsd under Previaus ASE, are mely
Ly #he Curgriarny fnr the: mlavent reportiag dates, refiectng canditions waisfing an a2 thet des,

(b} Classifeation and measuroment of financial sssels

The slaasfieasen of fnancal assels e ke massuied al amorised cast ar el vle trough ciher somprahensive nooma 5 mads on the Basis of the fagls and crcumElancas
Il gaisled on the deie ofiransition 1o ag A%,

i, Transition te lnd AS - Reconclllations

Ind A 101 reuires an enlity to recancile equiy, ¢ash lows for the prior panods, Tha flisaing tabls rapresanls the reconcilistions from previous Indian GASF 17 Ind A5
I Effectalind A5 adoplion an thi balsrice shaed aa at Marsh 31, 2096 and Aol 1, 2005

I Effect of Ind A5 aduplion on she statement of preat and kss for the yearended March 31, 2018

Il Roconciintion of intal cquity as 8t March 31, 2016 and Al 1, 2015

¢, Reconchiation of 0(a comprehensne incomi 1or I yoae andad March 3%, 2016

V. Melenal adustmenis 1o the slatamsant af cash Nows

L flnd AS ado alance Sheat T Milions_
Pariciudars Matos to As at March 31, 2016 s at April 1, 2016
Tirst tirme Ind A5 Il AS
adopion Indian GAAP adju i Ind A5 Indian GALAP adjusimant Ind AS
REEETS
fan-curmint assoks
in) Irdangbie aasets il 12.82 (12.82) - 1882 (1885 -
() Intangibin assels under developmonl 1] 1384781 (1,040,053 12 7Trar 704 BS (505 44) a,718.41
it} Fimancial Asants |
(11 Cther Fnancial Aesats {1 - 142,54 14264 - 31141 31144
() Defarrad tax asseds (net) 1] - 13532 135.32 - Ha.98 Ed &
(i} Sither rit - sarent essets 1.204,41 - 1,204 41 287640 | . TATE AD
Curront aasets I
(A} Firancisl Assees
[y Cash and cash equivatanls 15.24 - 1534 a3 31883
{if] ©mer inancial assel i 26,08 52332 S400.41 a9.62 a2
(b Curment Tawx Assats {Mat} 14,21 - 141 . -
i) Oifvdyr cument assats i 107.02 - 1070z 18804 114 88 78404
Total Asanta e {2018T] — 153813 10,085.58_ (BZEE] 1000670
EQWITY AND LIAEILITIES
EQUITY
|3} Egudy share cpital BO.18 . 018 60 1B - .18
Sub Crdinated Dbt (i} PETR S5 2B 5 0EQF B A0 BS
[b) CHher egquity 3.831.78 B4 355,64 2,583 .31 [ 47) 2 5R1 B3
LIARRITIES
Hon-currant Habilities
|A} Finarezial Liakiloes
1y Barmaings & ) 8,208.16 13128813 A 0RN 25 205565 {213,000 24280
() Caner financial iabities v | G5 £31.05) BR1 4R A10,48 151,20 T
{b} Fresssions 7.66 : T AR 1L ¥ 168
Cument dahilites
) Finnris Linelities
(T B rovifn g s 114.50 114 &0 G - 20.83
[H) Trade payabies RS ima 4.7 - 1467
{01y DOiber fnancial hatilhos 246035 - A 460 25 ERIEITE - A, 0L BS
(1) CHfer current Aabilges B 12 a9 A - B34
M Prevvisans 0.4 - 034 (A1 - 4198
() Carrant Taw Linaiives (Met) . - 4010 004 #0.11
Tudal Equity and Linnbilitias 18, 207.70 {25157) 1503813 10,885 58 (187 1 i0

“Thw presentaticn requireenents urder Previous w.r-' dflers from ardd hence tha Previous GAAR infarmation has been regrouped for aase of 7

regrauged Frevious GAAS infermation i derived based on the audibed financial sleduments of tha Campany.

seonsiftion with Ind A5 The
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DA Toll Raad Privaio Limited
Kaotes o Financial Statemants

It Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of
Prafit and Loss

Particulars

Reverue from Oparations
Dbt ncome
Todal Incemn

Expprscs
Tod Cparation and Mainlanence expensas
Canairielsn soaE
Frnpingnn hoeinfns & panss
Finance cosis
Amrlization axpense
Lot T TR ET

Total oxpensas

Profm f loss) balove Las

Tax expanas
Coarronl taw
Draforiugd fun chageiomdey

Fwabitl|Loss) tor tho perod
Dehier Comprehansive iewn
(I lems that will not be recldssitied
L profit or lass
Remapsurempris nf ned dadied
banedi plana @ Gaing S [Loss)
i} hrswara taz relating o Soms that will mot
e reclassiliod Lo profil or loss
Hemaasuramerts of rel defined benafit plans

Qiher Comprohenslve Inoomed|Lass) far the year

Total Comprohunsive InoomefLoas| far the yoar

Hotes fo flrs
Hma adnption

n
n

iy

I Milliens
— Forthe vear gnded March 31, 2016
Indian GAAF Ind AS Ind AS
—  Adluebments
1,669 5 508,76 755867
763 5B 15 BB
1,661 B& 5,267 95 TR19.4%
15 7664 287 A
. 579368 8,780 A0
1,06 34,28 7234
i 48,63 48,63
LETY (814} 43
5777 q0s. ¢
B 57 38 10,61
1557 1,200.9%
2a4.893 Adad 6E
- _ [@egn {38.02)
s R [l Xkl 08 &1
1,048.4R 5. 54 110307
- {378 (3 7a)
- (1.31 a1
. (147) 1247}
1,040.48 82,13 066D

“Theprasantalicn requremens uder Prowats GAAP dfers from and hercs s Previous CALAP iarmaticn b
e 7 % Den regioupad far paka of
racentiiation with nd A5, The ragrouped Previous GaAR infemation is derved based on e sudited financial sdalements of tha Company.

. Reconciliation of Tatal Equity

Particulars

Total equity [sharehabder's funds as por indian GAAP|
Adjustments:
Retratpectve applicaton of senice concassianaine arrangemanits

Discourting impact of Finenclarasssss recognised urdar
COANGRSSI0NEYE AFangament

Kates bo first
time adoption

Sur-ardnated dobl i nakire af oqully {Eily
Cihar
Tak pffocts an adjustments {doferod lae mpact) i)
Total adjustments
Twdal uquity (sharcholtor's funds as perind AS|

¥, Reconciliation of total comprenansive incone for the yoar onded March 39, 2016
PFarticulars

et prefit o iloss| as per Previous GAAF (Indian GAAR]
B b s
Adjugiments relating Senvice Concession Arrangomants

Ufwirding of digggunt on Financial asseis meogniaed
under cansassionare arrangement

Litharg.

Tas eftecle on adusimenls {dalomed iy Imaae)
Total adjustments %

Tatal eamprebensive moomalloss) under Ind A&

W, Material adjust s to the slakb & of cash fows

Mot cash panerated fram operajng activitas

Mot eArh (1med in) / generated from investing scvilios

Nat cash 1m0 In Sirencing acinvbes

Rt Incmasai decreass) in cash and Cash swuivalunes

A" C.aah sne cash eguwaleris at $e Legiming of fho year
Cash and cash equrvalents at the end of the yoar

Warch 3, April o,
Fidly 18
1611 79 2503
{175.73) {12538
EO.ET 1292
2U7BES 2602 85
1184
135337 .58
180829 258108
[T E104.89
R L
Yoar endad
Modes to first March 31,
hldﬂw 06
1,048 48
iy {45.35]
m 45 TS
039
i 4033
sz
1.[1 DI:LEE'
T Millinna
. Yoar ended March 31, 2015
Imdian Ind A%
GaAP adustmants [ A%
105070 217187 B B2
[ PR e 282.51 16,080 41}
4359006 $120.54) 4BEE 02
04, L) (A04 Ba
—EE = 219 A3
15.24 - 16.28
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MNotes to Financial Statements

Motes to First time adoption of Ind AS
Mote (i} - Application of service concessionaire arrangement as per Appendix A of [nd AS 11

Appandix & of Ind AS 11 'Service Concessionaire Arrangemant’ is apglicable to the Company which pravides guidance on accounfing by
the: operators of public-o-private ssrvice concession arangements under which privele sectar enfifies particpate in the developmant,
financing, operation and malntenance of infrastiucture for prevision of public services. The Company is engaged in to Design, Build,
Finance, Operate and Transfer {DBFOT) basis the twoll mads including operation and maintsnance thereof during the concession parad
Afler the expiry of the cornession penod the Company is required o hendover e Infrastruciure i.e. the toll raads to the grantor io
Maticnal Highway Authorities of ndia (MHAE

ergmzed In the

Az par the salient faature of the concession amangement, the socralor has @ twofold activity based on which revanus is

financial statements which i in line with the requirement ol Appendix A of lnd AS 11

- 3 sonstruchon activity in respect of its abligation o design, bulld and finance an asset that It makes avalable the grantar @ revenue is
racoghized on a stege of completicn basis in sccordencewith Ind A5 11 churing he constructian phase of the ol roads,

- an aperabing and maintenance activity m respect of the assais under the cuncession during the operational - revenue {5 FECOCMIZe Iy
accerdance with Ind AS 18 '

In raturn of itg activities, Ihe Compeny recelves cansiceralon from users of tall razds as right to receiva toll for usage of foll roeds In
consideration: far the financng end construction of the mirastructure for which an miangitle assate i recognized i the fingnclal
staterments. Aleo as per the concassion arrangamant parl of the project cost s coverea by an unconditional righl o receive payments fram
the grantar La. NHAL which has been recognized as ‘Granl receivable from NHAL under e head ‘financial assct’ end intenglble assets
has been recagnized 1o the extent of unguaranieed Lalante, of which tha amount i dependent on the extent of use of the infrastructure.
Retrogpective application of 'Service Concassionaire arrangement’ has ked to change in the accounting pohoy of the Company as on the
transifion date for classification, recognition and messurement of construction of assets and maintenance obiigations under the service
concasslon arangarmants.

On account of above, impacl of financial assets recognised under ConCessianaine anangement inet of discounling) resulting in increasa in
Total Equity of ¥ 60.67 million as at March 31, 2016 arc T 12.92 million as al Agril 1, 2015 and incroasa in profit of T 4775 millor for
the year ended March 31, 2018

Marecver thara has been decrease In intzngible assels and decressa in total equity, arising on account of spplication of service
concession arangement, of ¥ 175,73 million as at Maich M, 2016 and ¥ 125838 millon as at Apil 1, 2015 and Increase in loss of 7
AG.35 million for the year endad March 31, 2016

|

Mote {ii) - Rocognition of deferred tax assats/liability as per Ind AS 12

Ind AS 12 requires an entity to recognize defared tax Lsing balance sheet appraach, which is based an the tem ary differencas
between the tax base of an asset or llability and je cartying amount in the financizl statements. Deferred tax iz provided in full for all
temporery differences arising betwean the tax bases of assets and liablities and thair carrying amount in the financial statements, The
Company racognizes defermed tax assats for all deductible temperary differsnces including unused tax losses canried forward to the extent
that itis probabie that taxable profits would be available against which the deductible tamporary diferences can be utilized |

1
Uncier Indian GAAP deferrad tax was recagnized based on income approach and deferred tax assets in case of enused tak lossas carried
torward are recognized if there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable incoma will be availabls to realize the same Hence on
account of above deferred tax assets were nat recognized under the Indian GAAP,

On account of above thers has bean increase in defered tax Essel (net) resulting In increase in Total Equity by 135,32 millan as at
farch 31, 2016 milfion and T 94.99 millan as st April 1, 2015 and increase in profic T 40,33 million for the year ended March 31, 2078
mainly on sccount of Ind AS adjustments pertaining to retrospective application of service concession arrangament and defamad tax asset
recognized for unused tax losses camied forward 8s per Ind AS 12

Mote {iii}- Classification of subardinate debt Instruments (in nature of equity)

Ird AS 32 requires classificaticn of financial instruments issued into financial liabilities or equity. Subordinate debt instruments issued do
not mect he definition of 2 financial Lability, a2 the terms do not cast a contractual obligation on the the Company to make any payment of
principsl and accrued interest thereon in cagh ar other finencizl gsset. Furthar, since the instruments are non-convertible. the Company |z
nat required to setle the contracts by Issuance of her owr equity instruments.

Linder Indizn GAAP, thasa instrurmcnls are reportad a6 horrowings.

On gzeount of ahove thene hes been Increase in total Equity of ¥ 2,602 85 million as st March 31, 2018 and 2 2.876.55 milion as at Agril
1, 2015 with a conesgending decrsass in bonowings, [

Nate {iv] - Borrowings

Indd A% 109 requires transaction costs incumed towards argination of bomowlnge to be deducted fram the carrying amount of barrowings
un inilisl recagnition The same i3 recognlzad as inleres!| g3 part of the effective interest rate mathod over the perlad af the bormowing,
Under Ingizn GAMR, these were capitalised 1o irikengible aseets as per AS 18 'Borrowing cost' as and when incurred

Note (v) - Discounting of Retentlon maney

Ind A3 108 requies financial Instruments o be measures at fair value at initigl recegnition in case for financial lizabality ol &t fair value
through probil or Ioss, howavar if the far value of the financial ity o inifigl recognition differs from rransactian poce La. fair value of 1he
consideralion given of recaivesd than Lhe entity shall recognize he instruments 2+ its faur velug. In the presenl case the Company has
discounted the retention money puysble in order fo refect the feir valus of e retention money &t inilal recognition. Aftar initial
measurement subsequently the liabilities would be recognied st amerised cost

Under Indian GAAR retention money was racognized @t historical cost and no discounting was required 1o be done.
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Motes to Financial Statements

Note 33: Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are: % Millions
As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March, J1st March, 1st April,
i Notes 2017 2016 2015 |
Current
Financial assets
Firs! charga
Cash and cash equivalentls Sa 440.16 16.24 31983
Other Financial Assets 5b 1,167.83 54941 naz2
Mon-financial assets |
First charge [
(Mhar Cormet Assels 7 12085 '11}?.}32 284.04
Total current assets pledged as security 1,728.54 67167 || 60449
Mon-currant
First charge
Intangible assets 4 17.638.41 - -
Intangible assets under development & 1,596 18 12,777.87 G,718.41
Other Non Finaincial Assels e - 142.66 311,41
Othar Non Curmel Assets 5] 222.458 1,294 .41 2.276.40
Total non-current assets pledged as security 19,357.05 14,214.94 8,307.22
Total assets pledged as security 21,085.59 14 BBE.61 9.911.71
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Mote 34 - Carning Por Share

Nate M - Cansoquont upsan the oo monctizatian of gumonoy notas |
Movember & 905 0 Decemdny 1 ' it 1 ATt}
incumed denng this period &g oper 197 10 1 (ISR RTRRS EEH
alang with MHA! co-nular dated Nowoml P AE afd | il
conlractualty anfodceabde and ool || EE| LN
reivable: ol desdosed under O e | | 1 Asmg|

Note 38 - Darrne ng cost capitalisod during ne wear

The capitalisalar raie used for ciop w3 TR S fre Dletakser

Note 40 = Event=s ofter reporting oo

Thare are no & ~quant avanl o

rtlcul Year ended Year andod
Particulars March 31, 27 | March 31, 2016
Profit / Loss aitibufable o equily s chotles (e Jilionz] (4] 127.30 1,103,067
Weighted average ouanben of ooty shalros e bozagand diotod B0 AR D00 (B0 18,000
eamings por share (B |
Earmings | (Loss) por &hane (Basic and dilufed) (Rupaes) (AT 14.12 122.32
Mominal value of oguity sShares {ifupoos) 10.00 10.00
Mol 35 - Aucdidor Kemneration
Milligns
Farticulars Year anded Yaar anded
e [ March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
AudiiFees 0.35 029
Cerlilcaban Foos 0.13 0.05
Cut of packet Fxponses 0 04 0.06
= 0.53 0.39
Nole 38 - Conlingent Babilithes and Coaon [RENLE:
. i’ T Milllons
As at As at As at
Parti
ariputary 31st March, 2017 | 31st March, 2016 | 1st April, 2015
Commitmanis o [ { 4
Estimated value of capital cantrast romamning b b ekieoted oy ; 6,454.05 11,884.29 I‘IE.WU'-M
construction of 1o reads ( net of ] |
Conlingent kabililios | - 2 -
—_ L
Mote 37 - Statoment of cash recoivod and deposijed durlng demaonitisation period |
Ir Millions
[ specified bank Other Total
Particulars notes denomination
T, I 1 - notes
Clasing casn in hand a8 on 0B 17 2000 Ban 0.00 a.69
{+} Permitted receipts 471 88 57 114 38
{-) Permitied paymonts s 2 =
-0 Amnount disg et in bank 5B 10 58,64 114.74
Closing cash in hand as on FTREN- B.33 B33

S| oL yiessn - 4 AHE 39 millio.

el into between the company and NHAI read
ad. femound of Rs, 67,25 million cleimed, being
o] G oo, A st Mergh 24, 2047, T 6.50 milllons was

i, M1

1, 2018 orweards and 100% uplo September 30, 2016

o adjustmanis ta the Financial Statemeants
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DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Frevious year figures have been regrouped and re-arranged wheraver necessary to make them

Note 44 comparable to those for current period. |

As per our attached repart of even dala

For TR Chadha & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants :

F.r'mﬂegn. Mo, 00671 1N/MNE0O02E n
1 P

-

Pramud [LHwani Kaushik Pal M';ﬁ:la iyani
Partner Director Directgr
Membership No, : 76650 DIN:052372367, :. DIN:07430371

¥
" Srilatha Gopal

1= g t
oo LL&D\D\{\ \,%, it ompany Secretary
urmbai

Place: Place; Mumbai
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